# FINNINGHAM PARISH COUNCIL

Draft Minutes for the PARISH COUNCIL MEETING held on Tuesday 14<sup>th</sup> February 2023 in St. Bartholomew's Church, Finningham, starting at 7:30pm

Present: Cllr A. Kilbee, Cllr C Winter, Cllr N. Arthur, Cllr L. Charter, Cllr J. Miller

In attendance: Miss J. Challis (Clerk), CC & DC Cllr Mellen, 1 member of the public.

### 22.211 Visiting speakers

Cllr Mellen read through his DC and CC reports which were sent in advance of the meeting, and can be found as addendums at the end of the minutes.

In addition, Cllr Mellen said he has concerns regarding planning application DC/23/00337 (agenda item 21a). Notably that it falls outside of the settlement boundary of the Joint Local Plan and is therefore not in a favourable location, and also that the village does not have the infrastructure to support it.

Mr Aiken sent his Footpath Warden's report in advance of the meeting, which can be found as an addendum at the end of the minutes.

- **22.212** Contribution by Members of the Public No contributions made.
- 22.213 Apologies and approval of absence Apologies were received from Cllr Trew, and Cllr Black, (both prior engagements), and approved unanimously.
- 22.214 To receive any pecuniary or non-pecuniary declarations of interest from Members and any Gifts of Hospitality.

Cllr Kilbee declared a non-pecuniary interest against agenda item 21a. It was agreed for Cllr Kilbee to remain in the room but refrain from partaking in the discussion or voting against this item.

- **22.215** To consider requests for dispensations on agenda items As above.
- **22.216 To approve minutes of the Parish Council meeting held on 6<sup>th</sup> December 2022** Cllr Arthur proposed approving the minutes of the Parish Council meeting held on 6<sup>th</sup> December 2022 as a true and correct record; seconded by Cllr Winter and approved unanimously. The Chairman then signed the minute book..
- **22.217** Matters arising from the Parish Council meeting held on 6<sup>th</sup> December 2022 All covered elsewhere on the agenda.

#### 22.218 Chairman's Report

I hope that you have all had a splendid Festive Season and I welcome you to our first meeting of 2023. I am looking forward to be able to bring to fruition this year a number of projects we have been discussing during 2022. I must admit that, with a few notable exceptions, our lack of progress has not been due to any lack of interest of enthusiasm by the Council but by the dilatory nature of the Agencies with whom we have to work.

All I can say that we shall just have to persevere to achieve the goals we have set in the interests of the Community.

Most of my activities over the past two months will be covered by Agenda items, where I shall be able to update you on various aspects of progress (or otherwise).

Not covered however, is an enquiry I received via Jane recently from a lady in Rickinghall who enquired about the internment of family remains (ashes) in our Cemetery. Although the deceased was not a Finningham resident, she had expressed a desire for her ashes to be interned in our Cemetery, as many of her family were buried there. Unfortunately, we really do not have an area set aside for ashes, although there are two places already taken. Before she died, this person

had said that she wanted to be on the right-hand side of the Cemetery. The only place that I could offer was right at the end of the front row, where there were no graves (as far as I could ascertain from the Cemetery map). I have advised the relatives of this and they are very happy with the arrangement.

This episode has brought to light that we do not have a designated are for ashes in the Cemetery and I believe we should have one for future use. When we do the Cemetery clean up in the Spring, we should look at this and map out a suitable area.

#### 22.219 Clerk's Report

- EN020027 East Anglia GREEN Update National Grid have advised they will be holding a further non statutory public consultation in late spring/early summer 2023. It will detail their emerging proposals and rationale for the preliminary decisions they have made to date. More information about the consultation, including dates and how to participate, will be published nearer the time.
- The Precept request form 2023/24 was submitted to BMSDC prior to the 31<sup>st</sup> January 2023 deadline, and an acknowledgment received.
- S106 Funding BMSDC have confirmed that Finningham falls within the 10km Zone of Visual Impact (ZVI) for the wind turbines in Eye. There is approximately £2,100.00 of funds available for parishes falling within this wider 10km ZVI, and £1,000.00 may be applied for per project through BMSDC Grants. This funding is available for all organisations within the parish to apply for.
- Barclays Community Bank Account a letter has been received stating additional account information is required, which if not received, will result in the account being closed. The Clerk has confirmed the letter to be genuine, and provided the information required.

# 22.220 Finningham GREEN Footpath CIL bid application

Cllr Mellen has spoken to MSDC Infrastructure which has resulted in contact from the Spatial Infrastructure Officer, who has apologised for the lack of communication advising this is a new area of expenditure for District ClL, and that the Infrastructure Team is currently working with Suffolk county Council's (SCC) Highways and Public Rights of Way teams, to agree a process for taking these types of projects forward. There is a SCC meeting on 20<sup>th</sup> February when this will be discussed, following which the Spatial Infrastructure Officer would like to arrange a meeting. In addition, MSDC's Sustainable Travel Officer has made contact to see if they can help with the project in any way at all.

#### ACTION – Clerk to pursue CIL bid and arrange meeting as above

# 22.221 To discuss the emergency plan.

Following advice received from Suffolk Association of Local Council's (SALC), the Clerk has made contact with the Emergency Planning Officer from SCC who would like to arrange a meeting to discuss further.

#### ACTION – Clerk to arrange meeting as above

# 22.222 To discuss Annual Newsletter to everyone in the village, including approval of printing costs

Cllr Kilbee said it is now too late to proceed with a 1<sup>st</sup> March 2023 publication date. It was agreed that it would be best for the date to be after the upcoming elections in May. After discussing, it was decided not to proceed with individual councillor's biographies, and to concentrate on the newsletter being more about the aims of the Parish Council; what is within its power to do and what is not, recent works/achievements, alongside information for new residents in a Welcome Pack style. Cllr Charter will work on a draft before the next meeting.

ACTION – Cllr Charter to progress Annual Newsletter as above

# 22.223 To discuss PCC request regarding ongoing maintenance of the churchyard

Cllr Kilbee visited the Suffolk Archives in Ipswich to look at archived Parish Council and Finningham PCC minutes. However there is no record of a formal Order passing on maintenance of the churchyard to the Parish Council. This is a statutory requirement as per the Local Government Act s.215. The Clerk has advised the PCC, and they are in the process of writing a request which will be presented at the next meeting.

# 22.224 To discuss a permanent speed camera on Station Road

Cllr Trew has requested the Council consider a permanent solar powered VAS device on Station Road, to avoid the bracket being vandalised again. The Clerk thought VAS devices needed to be rotated but will check with SCC and investigate device options for further discussion at the next meeting when Cllr Trew is present.

ACTION – Clerk as above

#### 22.225 To discuss the footbridge on Eastlands Lane

Cllr Trew has reported that the footbridge is in a very bad state of repair, making it dangerous to users, and likely to block the river if it collapses and falls in. The Footpath Warden advised prior to the meeting that he has reported the bridge on numerous occasions, and spoken to SCC directly, who confirmed the footbridge was flagged to them over 4 years ago. Yet despite this, no action has been taken. The Clerk will report it again stressing the potential hazard it creates in its current condition, and the Council's health and safety concerns.

# ACTION – Clerk as above

#### 22.226 Elections May 2023

Town and Parish Council elections are being held on 4<sup>th</sup> May 2023. Anyone wishing to stand for election must complete and hand in a Nomination Form by 4<sup>th</sup> April 2023. The official Notice of Election is 16<sup>th</sup> March 2023, and 9<sup>th</sup> May 2023 is the date retiring councillors step down and new councillors start. The Annual Parish Council meeting must be held within 14days of 9<sup>th</sup> May 2023. The Clerk has upcoming election training with SALC, following which further details will be provided.

#### ACTION – Clerk as above

#### 22.227 King's Coronation May 2023

Cllr Kilbee said that Friends of Finningham (FOF) are making village event plans for Saturday 6<sup>th</sup> May 2023, starting at 3pm once the Coronation has taken place. These are due to be held next to the White Horse pub. Councillors agreed for the beacon to be lit noting there appears to be no official lighting of the beacons as there was for the Queen's Platinum Jubilee last year. There was a discussion on whether this should happen on the Saturday in conjunction with the events being planned by FOF, or on the Sunday alongside the official nationwide act of celebration. Councillors agreed unanimously to light the beacon on the Sunday, and went on to discuss ideas for a commemorative item to hand out to residents. Cllr Kilbee will ask Cllr Trew to contact the company who made the bespoke mugs for the Queen's Platinum Jubilee last year, in time for a decision to be made at the next meeting.

#### 22.228 Play Inspection Report 2023

An inspection was carried out on 1<sup>st</sup> February 2023 by the Play Inspection Company with an overall low risk assessment. Cllr Arthur will check through the report, look at the risks identified, and organise a working party to carry out any work that needs to be done. **ACTION – Cllr Arthur as above** 

#### 22.229 Correspondence received

An email has been received from a resident asking the Parish Council to consider their objections to planning application DC/23/00337 (agenda item 21a). The contents were shared with councillors prior to the meeting.

#### 22.230 Finance

a. RFO's report (bank balance, receipts, and payments)

#### Balances as of 29/12/2022

Community Bank Account Balance as of 29 December 2022: £27,491.98 (Balance as of 29 Nov 2022: £29,477.45) Receipts (since 29 Nov 2022): £0.00 Payments (since 29 Nov 2022): £1,985.47 Deposit Account Balance as of 29 December 2022: £3,333.32

General funds: £10,680.42 Reserves (1/2 of precept & election costs): £4,258.71 Restricted funds (CIL & grants not spent): £15,886.17

#### b. Requests for payment

Admin J. Challis - £369.43 HMRC J. Challis - £92.40 Clerk expenses (J. Challis mileage) - £20.61 A. Kilbee mileage expenses to Ipswich archives - £32.07 MKM Agriculture (fuel for mowers) - £25.71 MKM Agriculture (service of mower MAGA1363092) - £210.88 MKM Agriculture (service of ride on mower MAHF2903120) - £437.96 Friends of Finningham (annual website fee) - £100.00 N. Arthur expenses (planings church track) - £57.00 A. Brownlie (biannual churchyard clearance) - £300.00

#### TOTAL payments - £1,646.06

The payment request for the churchyard clearance was discussed, following advice from the Clerk that the Parish Council may contribute towards utilities, but not churchyard maintenance. SALC have provided the following confirmation:

NALC Legal advise that parish councils should not fund churchyard maintenance as this would breach the Local Government Act 1894, which prevents expenditure on works relating to the Church, or an ecclesiastical charity. This restriction overrides the power in the s.214, Local Government Act 1972 to maintain/fund cemeteries, or use if s.137 of the same Act. Councillors were unaware of this restriction, and will take it into account for future contributions. The invoice was approved because the work has already been carried out.

Cllr Winter proposed authorisation of the above payments, taking into account the advice received from SALC regarding the churchyard; seconded by Cllr Arthur and approved unanimously. ACTION - Cllr Kilbee and Cllr Winter to pay the remaining above approved payments by bank transfer (dual authorisation). Cllr Black to confirm when he has access to online banking.

#### 22.231 Planning

a. To consider applications

DC/23/00337 APPLICATION FOR OUTLINR PLANNING PERMISSION Application for Outline Planning Permission (all Matters Reserved) Town and Country Planning 1990 (as amended) – Erection of 4 No. detached chalet bungalows. Location: Land Adjacent, White Horse Inn, Station Road, Finningham.

Cllr Kilbee handed chairmanship of the meeting over to Vice Chair Cllr Winter, having previously declared a non-pecuniary interest against this item.

Cllr Winter asked councillors for their comments against the application, and a discussion ensued during which concerns were raised including sustainability of the development, access, lack of supporting infrastructure and the settlement boundary. One councillor said they liked the design on the proposed chalet bungalows.

9:24pm the member of the public left the meeting.

Cllr Winter asked for councillors to vote on whether they supported or objected to the application.

1) To support planning application DC/23/00337 Votes for: 1 Votes against: 3 Abstentions: 1

2) To object to planning application DC/23/00337 Votes for: 3 Votes against: 0 Abstentions: 2

The vote to OBJECT to planning application DC/23/00337 carried. It was agreed for the Clerk to collate the objections raised for email approval, before submitting to MSDC Planning. Cllr Winter handed the meeting back to Cllr Kilbee. **ACTION – Clerk as above** 

#### Following email approval, the following comments was submitted to MSDC Planning Department:

Finningham Parish Council objects to planning application DC/23/00337, Land adjacent, White Horse Inn, Station road, Finningham, based on the following material considerations:

- The proposed development is outside of the settlement boundary of the Joint Local Plan.
- It is not sustainable development and does not meet the interdependent sustainable development objectives of the NPPF.
- The parish does not have the infrastructure capacity to support the development.
- It is an overdevelopment of the site; the density of building design is too high.

- The loss of sunlight, overshadowing, and loss of outlook is to the detriment of residential properties sited behind the proposed development.
- There are significant highways issues; the site access is next to a busy crossroads, and the location is an approved site for one of the Council's VAS devices due to traffic and speeding issues, which impact the visibility splays.
- Incompatible uses; the development site will share the current access with the White Horse Inn.

b. Decisions & to consider planning matters coming forth. None.

# **22.232** To discuss date of the next meeting The next meeting will bel on Tuesday 14<sup>th</sup> March 2023 in St. Bartholomew's Church, Finningham.

- 22.233 Questions to Chairman None.
- **22.234** Items to be discussed at the next meeting and included in the April agenda. Elections and Annual Meeting dates.

There being no further business, the Chairman declared the meeting closed at 9:45pm